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Federal M ne Safety and Health Review Commi ssion (FMS. HRC)
O fice of Adm nistrative Law Judges

SECRETARY OF LABOR Cvil Penalty Proceedi ng
M NE SAFETY AND HEALTH
ADM NI STRATI ON ( MSHA) , Docket No. DENV 79-337-PM
PETI TI ONER A.C. No. 35-02386- 05002
V. Cougar M ne

W A BONAES, |INC.,
RESPONDENT

DECI SI ON

Appearances: Donald F. Rector, Esq., Ofice of the Solicitor, Departnent
of Labor, for Petitioner
Warde H Erwin, Esq., Portland, O egon, for Respondent

Before: Administrative Law Judge M chel s

The above-captioned civil penalty proceedi ng was brought
pursuant to section 110(a) of the Federal Mne Safety and Heal th
Act of 1977 (the Act) 30 U.S.C. [820(a) by a petition filed
February 12, 1979. A tinmely answer was filed by the Respondent
denyi ng the charges and requesting a hearing. On August 30
1979, a hearing was held in Pendl eton, Oegon, at which both
parties were represented by counsel

| ssues

1. \Whether the Cougar M ne of the Respondent is engaged in
"commerce"” within the neaning of that termunder Section 3(b) of
the Act.

2. \Wet her Respondent violated the mandat ory standards as
charged, and, if so, the amount of penalty which should be
assessed.

Commer ce

The matter of whether the Cougar Mne is engaged in
interstate commerce was decided tentatively fromthe bench for
t he purpose of permtting the rendering of decisions on the
merits of the citations. | found, subject to full and conplete
reconsi derati on upon the subm ssion of briefs, that interstate
commerce was established (Tr. 44). The parties duly filed briefs
on the matter which | have carefully considered. The follow ng
is my reconsidered determ nation on the question of interstate
conmer ce
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Facts on " Commerce"

The following is a statenent by Respondent's counsel which
provi des hel pful general background about the Respondent and the
Cougar M ne, as well as factual data on the issue of commerce.
See pages 10-15 of the transcript. Counsel for MSHA stipul ated
that if witnesses were called they would testify to the facts
contai ned in Respondent's opening statement. Counsel in effect
accepted the statement as facts (Tr. 18-19). It is as follows:

MR ERWN Well, basicically we have just now t ouched
on what | was going to say, because the evidence wll
probably be very sinple.

There is a question, a serious question, as to whether
or not this operation is within interstate comerce.
And | think by way of opening statement | can tell you
what | expect the evidence will show because it is
going to conme fromour clients anyway.

One is that WIIliam Bowes, Incorporated, is not a
producti on conpany. It has properties -- Now, it
doesn't own any properties. Let me put it that way
first. Every property that it is in the process of
devel oping is separately incorporated and there are
properties being devel oped under contract with New York
owners. There is property in Wom ng, not being

devel oped at all. There is a property owned by New
York people. There is property in Colorado which is
bei ng devel oped | presune under a | ease but no
production as far as WIlliam Bowes is concerned. There
is a property in South Mountain -- incidentally, that
property in Colorado is copper. It is a different
operation than what we are tal king about here. These
are precious nmetal mnes.

There is a property in South Muntain, |daho, which is
not producing, has not produced. There is a property
i n Nevada whi ch has not produced and only assessnent
work is being done on it. There is a property in
southern Oregon, but that's not true. The only other
property in Oregon is this property as far as | know.

Now, these properties are being devel oped with the idea
that they will perhaps sonme day be put into production
To this date they have not produced any ore nor has any
been shipped fromthe mne, no by-product has been
shipped fromthe mne. They are totally in the

devel opnent stage of their operation. * * *

The purpose of the work they are doing now is eventua
production so that they can renove the precious netal
fromthe ore in sone nethod. | think it is alittle
i mport ant
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that you know why this is an exceptional situation insofar as the
processing of the raw product is concerned. And it is because
this particular vein that they are interested in in the Cougar
Mne is a type of material which is susceptible to what they cal
a heap | eaching nethod of extraction.

Normal |y when we think of hard rock ore, we think of
going to a crushing plant or a reduction plant of some
kind of thing that you normally think of. And if that
were true we certainly would be having to ship ore into
Tacoma and we woul d probably have to have ot her kinds
of reduction plants, sonme sort of a mll soneplace to
do that.

Not all ore is susceptible to the heap | eaching
process. So on the Cougar M ne what they have done is
to build what appears to be al nbst the size of a smal
football field and it is paved with asphaltic pavenent,
it has ridges in it, squaring it off into sections so
they can put a heap of ore on this section and anot her
heap of ore on another section and so forth. Because
in this particular case the people in New York do not
own this but they are leasing this property from

anot her party. So this is not an owned property. The
property is being devel oped for the sane owners but
under a lease with a different party.

VWhat they do when they get these heaps of ore on these
various pads, each one slopes down so that the fluid
that they use will eventually go into the same trough
They put a hose, just |ike a garden hose which has
holes in it and spray like you water your [awn a

di luted solution of cyanide.

Now, cyanide as it perneates these heaps of ore carries
with it and | eaches out the precious netal of both gold
and silver.

So what runs off of these piles fromthis other
operation is a solution of cyanide. So that is
saturated with gold and silver ore, we hope. And it is
t hen punped - -

ALJ: Is this a new process?

MR ERWN It's not conpletely new but it has not been
used in this part of the country, and the only other
one that I know that is in operation is in New Mexico
-- no, it is in Carlin, Nevada, where the same type of
thing is used. It is an open pit gold mne there.

After this saturated solution drains off these piles,
it is then punped into a tower where there is carbon
col ums
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where the water or solution rate of flowis controlled so that it
goes down through these carbon colums, the carbon extracts from
the solution basic mneral that we are interested in recovering.

To date there has been no production fromthat except
for test purposes and that's all. None of it has been
shi pped.

To be quite frank, at this nonment we are having
difficulty in trying to extract fromthe carbon col ums
the precious netal and determ ne whether or not they
are getting a sufficient quantity out of this operation
to make this procedure worthwhile.

The point of all of this explanation is to show the
court and really for counsel's edification, too, that
there is nothing at this nmonent being shi pped
interstate by way of product, nothing has been shipped
outside the State of Oregon, nothing probably will be
shi pped outside the State of Oregon for a long tine, if
ever. | don't know. After they recover the gold out
of these carbon columms, | don't know whether the gold
woul d be sold in interstate commerce then or whether
peopl e would cone to the mine to pick it up. | amnot
know edgeabl e enough to know how that woul d be done.

But in any event at this nonent this mne is totally in
t he devel opnent stages, as are the rest of the
properties of WIIliam Bowes, many of which there is no
activity on yet. They are nmerely in the assessnent
stages on many of them

Counsel asked sonme questions about supplies. Most of

our supplies are bought locally. In fact I will ask
M. Henderson to testify, and | guess probably all of
them are bought locally. | don't know where the

cyani de come frombut | suspect it could be purchased
locally, although it mght have to be shipped in. But
nmy understanding is that that doesn't constitute
interstate commerce. It is the transportation out or
the sale of the product which constitutes interstate
conmer ce

So there is a little question as to whether at this
stage we cone under this act at all. And I thought it
m ght be helpful if |I would explain to the court why
this is an unusual type of mning operation, why it is
not subject to the usual situation

There are few other facts in the record bearing directly on
t he conmerce question. Kenneth D. Henderson, m ne manager at the
Cougar Mne testified that he was famliar with two other mne
sites of the Respondent,
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nanely, the South Muuntain property in Idaho and the operation in
t he Steanboat Springs area, Colorado (Tr. 20). Also he testified
t hat Cougar property is owned by a famly in Baker, Oregon, and

| eased to the Respondent, a New York corporation (Tr. 21).

M. Henderson expl ained that the m ne was not producing ore
on the lower |evel but that the operator was working the upper
levels on a part time basis and the personnel used varies from 14
to as many as 25 (Tr. 21-22). The approximate |length of the
tunnel worked in August 1978 was about 470 feet (Tr. 27).

Expl osives are used in the operator's conventional nethod of
m ning. The expl osives are purchased on a 60-day interval basis.
These are obtained in Boise, Idaho, and shipped fromthere to the
Cougar Mne in Oegon. Fifty cases are purchased at a tine which
cost a total of $2,500 (Tr. 23-24).

Di scussi on of "Commerce" |ssue

Respondent contends that its Cougar M ne operation is solely
devel opnental, that no ore has been produced or shipped, and that
the m ne operation therefore neither is in "commerce” or affects
"commerce." It cites Morton v. Bloom 373 F. Supp. 797 (WDC Pa.
1973) as holding that a one nman coal mner who sold the
production of the mine in intrastate commerce is not subject to
the provisions of the Federal Coal Mne Health and Safety Act of
1969.

I n approaching this discussion, it is first noted that the
del egation of authority under the act is very broad. 1In
affirmng the District Court decision, the United States Court of
Appeal s for the 3rd CGircuit in Kraynak Coal Conpany v. Marshall
Docket No. 78-2576 F. 2d (3rd Cir. 1979) held on
interstate commerce as foll ows:

Appel | ants al so argue that the Coal Mne Act does not
reach them because their mine sells coal only
intrastate to the Penntech Papers Conpany. They
contend that these sales are insufficient to bring
their operation within section 803, which decl ares that
the act covers "[e]ach coal of other mne, the products
of which enter conmerce, or the operator or products of
whi ch affect comerce.” In enacting the statute
Congress intended to exercise its authority to regul ate
interstate commerce to "the maxi num extent feasible
through legislation.” S. Rep. No. 1005, 89th Cong., 2d
Sess. 1, reprinted in [1966] U S. Code Cong. & Ad. News
2072, 2072. W agree with Judge Rosenberg's concl usion
that "the selling by the defendants of over 10,000 tons
of coal annually to a paper producer whose products are
nationally distributed enters and affects interstate
commerce within the neaning of 0803 of the Act." 457
F. Supp. at 911. See also Shingara, 418 F. Supp. at
694- 95.
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VWi le the court was passing on the 1969 Act, the present Act,
Federal Coal Mne Health and Safety Act of 1977, was not changed
with reference to cormerce. It may be concluded, therefore, that
the 1977 Act contains a delegation of authority over comerce as
broad as that which Congress can give.

Respondent' s principal argunment in this case, as noted
above, seens to be that because the Cougar M ne was devel opnent a
and no ore was produced, nothing therefore either noved in
commerce or affected commerce. The conmerce grant in Section 4,
however, does not necessarily require that products be produced.
It states in part "or the operations or products of which affect
commer ce" (enphasis added). "Commerce" in Section 3(b) is
defined very broadly as enconpassing "trade, traffic, commrerce,
transportati on, or comruni cati on anong the several states or
between a place in a State and anypl ace outside thereof * * *".
In this case the facts, as will be related in nore detail Dbel ow,
show at a mi ninum an "operation" which affects comerce, i.e.
affects any trade, traffic, transportation, or conmunication
anong the several states or otherwi se as set out in section 3(b).

The evidence or reasonabl e inferences therefrom denonstrates
that the operation affects comerce in several direct ways.
First, Respondent is not a one nman operation or a small
| ocal i zed business as was true in the Bl oomcase, supra. Far from
it. Respondent is in a way a multi-state operation. WIIiam
Bowes, Incorporated, is not a "production” conpany, but it does
separately incorporate and under contract or |ease devel op
certain properties. Some of the properties include one in
Woni ng, one in the Steanboat Springs area in Col orado, a South
Mount ai n property in lIdaho, a property in Nevada and the Cougar
Mne in Oegon, the subject of this proceeding. Apparently none
are at this tine in production, but rather are in a devel opnenta
st age.

The fact of these different properties in different states,
even though not in production suggests an operation which affects
trade, traffic, or conmunication between two or nore states. It
is a fair inference that comunication by tel ephone, mail, or
ot herwi se has occurred between states involving the New York
Corporation and the Oregon Corporation or other properties.

Specifically concerning the Cougar M ne, although there has
been no production, the |leasing of the property in Oregon by a
New Yor k Corporation and the building of a significant facility
i ncluding an area paved the size of a small football field and
all reasonable inferences therefrompernmts a conclusion that the
operation has affected trade, traffic, or communicati on between
states. Finally, as to the Cougar M ne, the evidence expressly
shows the novenent of goods fromout of state: specifically, the
shi pments of expl osives from Boi se Idaho, to the plant site in
Oregon. Secretary of the Interior v. Shingara, 418 F. Supp. 693
(MD. Pa. 1976). Therein, the court held that the "purchase of
several itens of equi pnent and an insurance policy produced by
out-of -state sources also brings [the mine] within the

t he
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af fecti ng conmerce rubrique and exposes themto the Act." Cf
Kraynak Coal Conpany v. Marshall, supra, and Brennan v. OSHRC
492 F.2d 1027 (2nd Gr. 1974).

Finally, the holding of the Ninth Crcuit in Godw n v.
Cccupational Safety and Health Revi ew Conmi ssion, 540 F.2d 1013
(9th Cr. 1976), appears to be dispositive of the argunment that
the Cougar M ne was only in the devel opnmental stage. In that
case, involving the Cccupational Safety and Health Act, the court
held that the activity of clearing land for the purpose of
growi ng grapes is an activity which, if performed under unsafe
conditions, will adversely affect comrerce; that clearing land is
an integral part of the manufacturing of wi ne, and therefore
commerce is affected by the activity. 1In this proceeding, the
activity of developing a mine is an integral part of gold mning
and the subsequent production of gold and simlarly will affect
conmer ce

Based on the above cited facts and circunstances, | affirm
nmy decision fromthe bench that the Respondent at its Cougar M ne
facility is engaged in "comerce” within the neaning of that term
in the Act and subject to the Act and the regul ati ons.

Deci sions on the Ctations
Citation No. 350060

The decision made orally fromthe bench on this citation is
contained in the record at pages 70-75 and reads as foll ows:

This decision deals with Ctation No. 00350060. M
finding on the fact of the alleged violation is as
fol | ows:

The mandatory standard in this case, alleged to have
been violated, is 30 CFR 57.13-21 and reads as foll ows,
"Except where automatic shutoff valves are used, safety
chai ns or other suitable |ocking devices shall be used
at connections to machines at hi gh pressure hose |ines
of three quarter inch inside dianmeter or |arger, and
bet ween hi gh pressure hose lines of three quarter inch
i nside dianeter or |larger, where a connection failure
woul d create a hazard."

The inspector in citing the violation stated, "A safety
chain or other suitable |ocking device was not used at
t he connection of the high pressure air line to the
jack leg air drill in use at the face of the decline to
prevent persons frombeing injured in the event the air
line cane | oose fromthe drill."

The evi dence consists mainly of the testinony of the

i nspector and is not in dispute on nost aspects of the
charge. The inspector did testify that he found -- or
t hat he
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observed the jack leg drill in use and while he did not see an
automatic shutoff valve, he believed that there may [not] have
been one. He also observed that the machine was of the type that
normal ly requires the three quarter inch inside dianmeter hose.

He al so observed that the jack leg drill did not have the safety
chain or other suitable |ocking device. A |locking pin was
acceptable to the inspector and abatenent consisted of inserting
of the | ocking pin.

| find these to be the facts. And | should add that no
evi dence in defense was presented whi ch woul d suggest
that there was an automatic shutoff valve or that this
machi ne ot herwi se was not covered by this mandatory

st andar d.

In circunstances and for the reasons that | amgoing to
shortly explain, | find this to be a violation of the
standard as char ged.

The principal defense as | understand it and which
bel i eve deals with the aspect of negligence nore than
it does the fact of the violation is to the effect that
this was the fault of the individual enployee.

However, | will deal with that right here and now
because it was a defense raised.

Perhaps nmy viewis colored to some extent. | have
grown up and devel oped under the coal nmine | aw or when
the I aw was applied only to coal mnes. The question
of responsibility of the operator was fairly early
settled and did not ever seemto be in serious doubt.
think the legislative history, the way the Act is
witten, all tell us that Congress intended for the
operator and not the enployee to be held responsible.
It was only | think in perhaps one rare instance, and
that is in the securing of the snoking materials, do
they ever place responsibility on the enpl oyee.

Now, | fully recognize and | think that everybody that
works with this does, that there are occasi ons when no
matter what the operator does, it is just sinply

i npossible to carry out a particular regulation. That
is, where you fail to get the enpl oyees' cooperation
Some of those areas | have nentioned previously. That
is, personal protective devices. And the board has
ruled on that.

However, in other areas dealing with the use of

machi nes and devices, | don't think that rule applies.
The argunment was made and put very strongly and very
ably, that * * * it was inpossible for the operator
here to conply with this particular regulation, and
woul d say
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fromwhat | have seen, that it was perhaps difficult, but I
cannot agree with the inpossible designation. | accept the fact
that in this case the operator was diligent, used all reasonable
means available to it to conply with the law, but in spite of al
of that enployees did get out of line and did not follow through
and engaged in the acts that they weren't supposed to for the
pur poses of safety.

So what is the answer to that? It would just be glib

of me [if] | sit here and say there is an answer; that
you can sonehow penalize nmen. Maybe that's inpossible,
| abor relations being what they are. | don't know what
the answer to it is.

| sinmply could not subscribe, however, to the
proposition that there is no answer, and ny genera
concl usion would be that further efforts or other
efforts could be enployed to prevent this sort of a
viol ation.

My judgnent, of course, is based upon the clear

requi renents of the | aw which place the
responsibilities solely and exclusively upon the
operator. And if | did not so hold, I would just be
going contrary to the very settled lawin this area

So that would then be the reason for ny finding of the
violation in this case as to this citation.

I will go through all of the criteria for this first
al l eged violation and that won't be necessary
hereafter.

As to the history of prior violations, based on the
stipulation, there were only two other prior citations.

I find there was no significant history of prior
vi ol ati ons.

As to the appropriateness of the penalty to the size of
the operator, pursuant to the stipulation I find that
the penalties herein will be appropriate to the size of
the operator. | should nake the finding that there
were 20 enpl oyees working at the mine and that they

wor ked sone 19, 000 man- hours.

I woul d conclude that this would be a small m ne under
the circunstances and that the penalties, if any, that
are assessed herein will be appropriate to its size.
The effect on the operator's ability to continue in
busi ness. Pursuant to the stipulation, | find that the
fines which will be assessed will not affect the
operator's ability to continue in business.
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Good faith conpliance. Again, based upon the stipulation, I find
that the operator which abated all of the violations within the
ti mes established, denonstrated good faith efforts to achieve
rapi d conpli ance.

Gavity. On this criterion, the only evidence that we
have is that by way of the inspector who testified that
if this hose breaks |oose, it mght whip around and
injure enpl oyees, and in this instance one enpl oyee

m ght have been subjected to the effects, could have
resulted in bruises and eye injury. And al so that

enpl oyee coul d not have easily avoi ded the whi ppi ng
hose. | appreciate the statement by counsel for the
operator that this maybe isn't all that serious.
However, that woul d not be evidence of record and
could not rely onit. Accordingly, |I findit to be a
noderately serious violation.

The last and final criterion is negligence. | have
al ready indi cated sone of mnmy thoughts on the
negligence. | think it is evident that the operator
did have a programto check these kinds of activities
to make sure that this hose was |locked. In this
instance it appears that it m ght have been the fault
of an individual man, not inserting the key. 1In the
circunmstances | would find slight negligence.

Accordingly, and in summation, | find that the operator
violated the regul ati ons as charged and that an
appropriate penalty would be that which has been
reconmended by the Secretary, which is $18. | hereby
assess the penalty of $18.

This decision is hereby affirnmed.
Ctation No. 350061

The decision made orally fromthe bench on this citation is
contained in the record at pages 88-89 and reads as foll ows:

ALJ: | will proceed now to make ny decision fromthe
bench on this citation, which is 00350061, with the
same reservations that | nmentioned for the prior
citation [that is, subject to reconsideration of the
"commerce" issue].

In this case the inspector has alleged in his citation
that there was a violation of 30 CFR 57.6-5, which
reads "Area surroundi ng magazi nes and facilities for
the storage of blasting agents shall be kept clear of
rubbi sh, brush, dry grass, or trees (other than live
trees ten or nore feet tall), for a distance not |ess
than 25 feet in all directions, and other unnecessary
conbustible materials for a distance of not |ess than
50 feet."



~2099
The inspector indicated in his citation the condition or practice
to be that the area around the powder magazi ne had an
accunul ati on of rubbish, dry brush and other conbustible
materi al s.

The only evidence we have in this citation is that
recei ved through the inspector. That is, his testinony
and certain of the exhibits.

The inspector has testified that there was an

accumul ation of materials which included a fallen tree,
grass, possibly some brush and bark. This material was
cl ose up and even on top of the magazi ne.

There is also evidence that at this particular tinme it
was not dry but that it had rained a short tine before.

In Iight of this evidence and there being nothing to
the contrary, | find that there has been a violation of
the mandatory standard as alleged. M findings on the
two criteria of gravity and negligence are as foll ows:
On gravity, | find that while it may not have been
extremely serious on this particul ar day because of the
danpness, it was a situation in which dry periods do
occur and therefore it could have been dangerous.

find therefore that this violation was noderately
serious. On negligence, for the circunstances it
appears to nme that this was a situation which the
operator knew or should have known about. And I find
that this was ordinary negligence.

Accordingly, in sunmation, | find that the operator
violated the regul ation as charged and that an
appropriate penalty is that proposed by the Secretary
in this case, the sumof $10.

The above decision is hereby affirnmed.
Ctation No. 350062

The decision on this citation was rendered orally fromthe
bench. It will be found at pages 103-106 of the transcript and
reads:

ALJ: The following is ny decision with reference to
citation No. 00350062.

This decision is nade with the sane reservati ons as
t hose nade previously.

The inspector alleged in this case a violation of 30
CFR 57.6-20(f) which requires that "Magazines shall be
* * * (f) Made of non-sparking material on the

i nside, including floors."
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And the inspector alleged as the condition or practice that the
storage expl osive magazi ne seen had exposed sparking material on
t he inside of the nmagazine.

The evi dence received consists of the testinony and the
exhibits of both the inspector and of the operator, M.
Henderson. There is not nuch, if any, dispute about
the facts. The nagazi ne had a door of an outside netal
construction to which was nail ed wooden pl anks. The
nails came through the backs on the inside and were
bent over.

The inspector has testified that this was a sparking
material and could be the source of a spark or an
expl osion of the dynamte stored in the magazi ne.
The inspector's statenment which was filed indicates
that the possibility of the event occurring would be
rare. So far as the fact of violation is concerned,
whi ch has nothing to do with the frequency or the

i keli hood of the event, | do find that the standard
was viol ated as all eged.

| think, as | understand it at |east, the defense is
mainly along the lines that there was such a smal
anmount of sparking material as to make it virtually
i npossi ble that a spark woul d ever occur

Now, unfortunately, the standard does not specify the
anmount of sparking material. That is, whether it could
be a small anount or a | arge anount.

The inspector has given his view as to the
possibilities in which even what is obviously a
relatively small anount of sparking material could
still be sufficient under some circunstances to cause a
spark. The main point that I would have to decide,

t hen, was whether or not that was sufficent sparking
material to come within the standard and, based on the
i nspector's testinmony, | find that it is.

My findings on the two statutory criteria of gravity
and negligence are as follows: * * * | do not find
that that would be serious. | would refer back to the
i nspector's view that the possibility of the event
occurring would be rare. | believe in light of that
circunstance that | would find it to be non-serious.
Now, that |eaves negligence. In light of all the
testinmony including that of M. Henderson who held the
view that this would not cause a spark and that he
never realized that this would be required under the
regul ations, | find that there was a snmall degree of
negl i gence. The penalty proposed



~2101

by the Secretary which is $10, | believe, already takes into
account the factors of non-seriousness and a small degree of
negligence, so | would find the same anount %(3)4B | would
assess the sanme anount, that is, a penalty of $10.

In sunmation, if it is not clear, | find that the
operator has violated this regul ation as all eged and
t hat appropriate penalty, taking into account all of
the statutory criteria, would be the sumof $10.

Citation No.350063

wi

A deci sion was rendered fromthe bench on this citation and
be found at pages 136-138 of the transcript as foll ows:

ALJ: | will nake ny decision in the citation No
00350063. It will be made subject to the same
reservati ons heretofore nmentioned.

The inspector has charged a violation of 57.12-2 which
reads "El ectric equi pment and circuits shall be
provided with switches or other controls. Such

swi tches or controls shall be of approved design and
construction and shall be properly installed.” The

i nspector found as the condition or practice that the
di esel electric power generator did not have a

di sconnect switch | ocated at the generator set and that
the diesel electric generator was |ocated within 150
feet of the mne portal

In this instance there is not a great deal, if any,
di spute as to the basic situation. The diesel is
| ocated 150 feet or so fromthe mne portal. There is

a line running therefore fromthe diesel to the porta
and as | understand it, at |east, there is no question
that that line is not protected. There is no dispute
that if a line %(3)4B or | should say circuit or piece
of equi pment needs to be protected, that the type of
switch required was appropriate.

This is nore or less the classic situation in which the
i nspector in his view and in his judgnment, based upon
hi s experience and know edge, [determ ned] that such

I ine should have been protected by a di sconnect swi tch
On the other hand, M. Henderson testified at |east as
| understood it that the switch on this particul ar
circuit was not necessary.

My finding is that this did violate the regul ation as
charged and | would give ny reason as | viewit. The
mandat ory standard does require that every circuit be
provi ded
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with a switch. Now, this may not have been a highly vital or
important circuit. | really don't know that. But it was, as |
understand it, an unprotected circuit. This may be for all

know an area in which we are tal ki ng about sonething that becones
quite technical in electrical terns. That is certainly possible.
But at |east strictly speaking, as | understand it, the standard
does require such a switch and | therefore find the violation as
al | eged.

The gravity of that violation. As the inspector
testified, in the case of a short there was a
possibility of electrical shock. | find the violation
to be noderately serious. On negligence, this is a
condition which the operator knew or shoul d have known
about and I find it to be slightly negligent. Under
all of the circunstances nentioned and because of the
di sagreenment about the strict need for the swtch,
find that only a nom nal penalty should be assessed.
The Secretary has recommened $36, which under the
circunstances may be too large. In ny viewthe penalty
shoul d be $18.

And in summation | find that the operator violated the
regul ati on charged and that an appropriate penalty,
taking into account all of the statutory criteria, is
$18.

This decision is hereby affirnmed.

Citation No. 350064

A deci sion was rendered orally fromthe bench as to this

citation and is found at pages 162-164 of the transcript as

foll ows:

ALJ: The inspector in this instance charged a
violation of 30 CFR 57.9-110, which reads as foll ows:
"Shelter holes shall be provided to ensure the safety
of men al ong haul ageways where continuous cl earance of
at least 30 inches fromthe farthest projection of
novi ng equi pnent on at | east one side of the haul ageway
cannot be naintained."

In his citation the inspector charged the condition or
practice to be as follows, "Shelter holes were not

provi ded al ong the mai n haul ageway to ensure the safety
of men al ong the haul ageway. At |east 30 inches of

cl earance must be provided fromthe farthest projection
of novi ng equi pnent on at | east one side of the

haul ageway. "

On this alleged violation we have the testinony of the
i nspector, M. More, and also of M. Henderson. M.
Moore has indicated that he did not actually nmake any
of the neasurenents but that it was his view that at
times the clearance would be | ess than 30 inches



because of his experience and because of his estinmate
of the size of the entry.
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citat

M. Henderson has testified on the other hand that the entry
woul d be at |east 108 inches and nore, possibly another foot,
make it 120 i nches, and that based upon the manufacturer's
design, the scoop is 61 inches w de, which would I eave in
actuality a total of approximately 5 feet at the maxi num

In ooking at the standard, | observe that it does
state that shelters are required where clearance of at

| east 30 inches on one side of the haul ageway cannot be
mai nt ai ned.

Now, it would be apparent if the neasurenents nentioned
by M. Henderson are true, that certainly 30 inches
could be maintained. It is a question of whether they
were. | believe that the inspector’'s belief was that
with the conditions of the mne, the nature of the
rubber tired vehicle and so forth, that they were not
bei ng mai ntained. The testinony does indicate his view
that this would be a safety measure regardl ess of the
regulation. | don't believe that I would be able nor
would I want to rule on whether it should be a safety
nmeasure regardl ess of the regulation. My function woul d
be to |l ook at the regulation and see if it comes within it.

My holding is that there is insufficient evidence here
to prove the violation. That is based mainly on the
fact that the inspector did not have accurate
measurenents. So it does provide a certain anount of
uncertainty. It is perhaps likely that when you

consi der rubber tired vehicles going down that entry,
that maybe 30 i nches was not maintained at all tinmes on
one side, but the main point that | would rely on is
that we just sinply don't know fromthe testinony that
we have.

So, accordingly, I would find in this citation that
there is no violation and that citation will be
vacated. And hereby it is vacated.

This decision is hereby affirned and the petition as to this
ion is dismssed.

The assessnents for the above citations are summari zed as

foll ows:
Assessnents or
Citation Nos. ot her disposition
350060 $18.
350061 10.
350062 10.
350063 18.
350064 vacat ed

Total Assessnent $56.
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CORDER

It is ordered that Respondent pay the penalty of $56 within
30 days of the date of this decision.

Franklin P. Mchels
Admi ni strative Law Judge



